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 RFP #6-2020 ESR Priority Area: Overnight Emergency Shelter


PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM 


Agency Information 


Agency Name:______________________________________________________________________________________ 


Mailing Address:____________________________________________________________________________________ 


Street Address:_____________________________________________________________________________________ 


Phone:  (         )               -             _         


 Yes     No 


    Yes    No 


Is your Agency registered with the IRS as a 501(c)3 organization? 
Note: Agencies must be registered with the IRS as a 501(c)3 organization to be eligible for ESR Program funding. 


Does your agency have a Silver Seal of Transparency or higher profile on GuideStar.org? 
Note: Agencies must have a Silver Seal of Transparency or higher profile with GuideStar.org to be eligible for ESR funding.


Website Address:___________________________________________________________________________________ 


Agency Representative (typically the Executive Director - Name, Title, Phone, Email): 


_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Person Completing Application (Name, Title, Phone, Email): 


_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Program Information 


Name of program for which funds are being requested: ____________________________________________________ 


Total Funding Amount Requested:  $                                        ______ 


RFP #6-2020 PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM 
• Save this PDF formatted Proposal Submittal Form to your hard drive before beginning to enter


responses in it to ensure your responses are saved to the form.


• LIMIT RESPONSES IN TEXT BOXES TO 250 WORDS


• REMINDER: All proposals must be written in a clear and concise manner, as there will be no follow-
up or clarifications to proposer’s submittal form once the evaluation process begins.
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5.1 Program Design & Performance 


5.1.1 General Shelter Information   15 Points 
The following information is required in order to evaluate capacity and scope of programming and ensure a balance of 
shelter options for various sub-populations of people experiencing homelessness. While the overall narrative score is a 
major factor in funding recommendations, LFUCG will also consider factors such as ensuring availability of critical services 
and an adequate number of emergency shelter beds for vulnerable populations. 


• Provide a description of the shelter including;
o shelter operating hours,
o population served included special populations served,
o shelter rules and procedures (submit documentation)
o how basic needs are met such as meals and personal care,
o operating hours outside of nighttime shelter, i.e. are staff operating during the day
o general staffing description for the emergency shelter


• Does your emergency shelter consistently implement practices to meet people where they are, and provide person-
centered care that focuses on personal strengths? (submit documentation as an attachment)


• What policies or value statements convey clear expectations that guests will be treated with dignity and respect, and
how does the shelter monitor adherence to these expectations? (submit documentation as an attachment)


• Are expectations of guests clearly communicated and easily accessible for review by guests? (submit documentation
of communication process


• What specific practices help ensure that the shelter exhibits cultural competency and provides appropriate
protections for shelter seekers across demographic differences?


• Does the shelter involve guests in governance and operations? (submit documentation as an attachment)
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5.1.2  Rapid Resolution, Housing Oriented    25 points  
Up to 10 points will be awarded to applicants demonstrating a shelter project that is rapid resolution and housing oriented. 
This means a plan is presented for how the organization works with guests to develop and implement a housing plan 
including diversion techniques and how quickly people move to permanent housing.  
Narrative for this section should address all of the following prompts: 


• Does your emergency shelter’s process for accessing shelter assess options for diverting from shelter?
• Does your emergency shelter’s diversion approach include, when needed, financial assistance, mediation, housing


location, legal assistance, or other supports?
• What role do mainstream programs play in supporting shelter seekers and diversion efforts?
• How does your emergency shelter provide immediate assistance and link guests with housing options within the first


14 days of a shelter stay?
• How does your emergency shelter use data routinely to detect trends, identify frequent users, and monitor housing


success and other performance measures?
• How your emergency shelter coordinate with the broader homelessness service and housing systems in system-level


planning?
• Does your emergency shelter assess and address the safety risks for people fleeing domestic violence?
• Describe how shelter guests are assigned case management and detail how case management is provided in your


emergency shelter. How often do case managers discuss housing options with guests? How and when do the
conversations about obtaining housing begin? Do case managers utilize best practices when working with clients such
as trauma informed care?


• How will shelter staff members or volunteers help shelter guests access documents needed for housing (birth
certificates, Social Security cards, etc.) when needed?
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5.1.3  Low-Barrier   15 points  
Up to 5 points will be awarded to applicants based on an evaluation of the shelter’s commitment to a housing first, low-
barrier model. Low-barrier shelter is a critical piece in the homeless assistance approach that prioritizes providing people 
experiencing homelessness with shelter as quickly as possible – and then providing voluntary supportive services as 
needed. A low-barrier shelter is one which has only the least restrictive entry criteria necessary to ensure health and safety 
in the facility. 
Narrative for this section should address all of the following prompts: 
• Does the shelter set only minimal and reasonable requirements for guests, and does the shelter enforce these


requirements in a fair and transparent way? (submit documentation as an attachment)
• Does your emergency shelter have minimal expectations or requirements of people seeking shelter? (submit


documentation as an attachment)
• Does your shelter welcome self-defined family and kinship groups to seek shelter together?
• Can your emergency shelter identify financial resources that can support the adoption of low-barrier policies and


practices and support extended or flexible hours and adapted service-delivery models?
• Does your shelter accommodate pets and belongings?
• Does the shelter make accommodations to store belongings and if so, how?
• Do your shelter intake process and housing navigation services coordinate closely with community-based outreach


services and coordinated entry?
• Does your shelter create flexible and predictable access for people seeking shelter?
• Are guests required or requested to contribute funds or labor to remain in the shelter? (submit documentation of


any program fees or volunteer time required as an attachment)
• Are guests required to participate in classes or programs as a condition of remaining in the shelter? If yes, describe


the process followed to determine whether someone is admitted or removed from the shelter and appeals available
to those denied access. Applicants should include with their proposal a copy of written operation procedures for denial 
of services. This includes drug testing.


• How many participants were turned away or banned in the past 12 months for reasons described above?
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5.1.4  Actual Results   10 Points  
Applicants will be evaluated based on actual results from the previous year. LFUCG will utilize access to KYHMIS for 
organizations with prior year participation. ONLY non-participating first-time applicants should provide a narrative 
describing outcome targets and actual results for relevant existing shelter. If the organization has not operated an 
overnight emergency shelter in the past year, the organization may submit performance reports for any transitional 
housing, rapid rehousing, or permanent supportive housing program. . 
The OHPI reserves the right to negotiate final targets. Results will be evaluated based on reports from the KYHMIS 
database, not agency records, so KYHMIS data quality and timeliness is critical. 


• Submit reports from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 as attachments
o CoC APR
o CoC CAPER
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5.1.5  Capacity, Cost Effectiveness, & Budget   10 points  
Every community, including Lexington, faces the challenge of ensuring that shelter capacity is scaled to meet local need 
and that it is financed accordingly. This does assume that we should expand emergency shelter for those in the community 
that are currently experiencing unsheltered homelessness.  


In making decisions regarding necessary capacity, LFUCG will consider how a broad range of changes and improvements 
within their crisis response systems will impact need and demand for emergency shelter, including: increased emphasis 
on diversion strategies and services; reductions in the length of time it takes for guests to move from shelter to permanent 
housing, including through expanded rapid resolution interventions; removal of barriers to entry; and increased emphasis 
on long-term or frequent users of emergency shelter.  


Complete this table by indicating the total in the column to the right, then respond to the 
narrative prompts below: 


Total 


***Number of individual beds available: 


***Number of units available for families, if applicable: 


Funds requested from LFUCG: 


Average nightly census for individuals based on KYHMIS data: 


Average nightly census for families based on KYHMIS data: 


Total annual budget for shelter (all funding sources): 


% LFUCG investment (LFUCG Request/Total Budget * 100): 


• ***Total beds above not reflect any overflow capacity such as mats on the floor, sleeping in lobbies, dining room
chairs or overflow into other buildings owned by partners such as churches or other non-profits. Also exclude beds
reserved for/supported by Department of Corrections, Veterans Administration, Department of Community Based
Services, or other funding sources.


• Please describe all funding sources other than LFUCG that are included in your total emergency shelter budget.


%
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Program Budget Summary Form Instructions 
Proposal Submittal shall be considered incomplete and shall be rejected without completed Budget Summary 
Form. (Including total amount of ESR grant request.) The Program Budget will be the same for both FY21 and FY22; 
there will be no increases in award for Year 2 of the grant.  


For organizations requesting funding for more than one program in this RFP, combine into a single Program Budget 
narrative for the proposal.   


Please note that the Program Budget will be part of the grantee agreement with LFUCG and regular tracking and 
expenditure reporting will be required. 


To ensure readability and uniformity, please use the Program Budget form included.  Provide brief line-item detail as 
specified in each section below and verify all calculations.   


This section provides a summary of the total proposed Program Budget for FY 2021.  It requests the allocation of all 
projected funding amounts (City and non-City sources) for anticipated FY 2021 program expenditures.   


Total Program Budget 
Column A should reflect projected expenditures for the entire program (not just the proposed LFUCG ESR grant 
funding request portion).  When the chart is completed this column should equal ESR Grant Funding Request plus  
other/non-ESR program funding. (A=B+C) 


ESR Grant Funding Request 


Column B is the grant amount being requested from this RFP to support this program’s services to eligible Fayette 


County Participants.   


Non-LFUCG Program Funding 
Column C is the non-LFUCG ESR funding that is allocated to the Total Program Budget (A-B = C). 


This form is for the budget for the PROGRAM applying for ESR funds, not the total agency budget. 


For each category identify the amount requested and the amount to be leveraged through other programs or 
organizations (if applicable).  


Staff Salaries – Identify the number of Full-time position salaries allocated to the program, and part-time positions 
allocated to the program, and the amounts of each allocated to Columns A, B, & C. 


Consultant Services – In the “List Details” box, briefly describe any expenses associated with providing expanded 
supportive services or other services for which the organization intends to contract with another entity. Any of these 
expenses to be provided by the proposing organization should be included in other line items. 


Space/Facilities – In the “List Details” box, briefly list the basis of the allocation of rental costs, utilities, janitorial 
costs, and any other facility costs for the Program. Identify any office or program space in an LFUCG owned building, 
and any other costs (rent, monthly utilities, etc.) reimbursed to LFUCG. 


Scholarships/Stipends – In the “List Details” box, briefly list the type of scholarships or stipends, and include the 
number of people or organizations to receive funds. 


Operating Expenses – In the “List Details” box, briefly list the costs associated with expenses, supplies, utilities, and 
any other expense associated directly with the operation of the project. 


Other – In the “List Details” box, briefly list any other costs for the Program not covered above. 
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PROGRAM BUDGET SUMMARY  
Agency Name 


Program Name   


FY 2021 (July 1, 2020--June 30, 2021)  Total Program Budget 


Column A Column C 
Total Program 
Budget [= B+C] 


Column B ESR 
Grant Funding 


Request        
Non-ESR Program 


Funding  [A-B] 


1. Staff Salaries for Program # of 
Employees: 


Full-Time (FTE) 


Part-Time 


Total Salaries 


3. Consultant Services $ 
list details 


4. Space/Facilities $ 
list details 


5. Operating Expenses $ 


list details 


6. Scholarships / Stipends $ 
list details -
numbers & 


amounts 


$ 7. Other


list details


8. TOTAL FY21 PROGRAM BUDGET
(Program budget will be the same for FY22;
no increase in award for Year 2 of the grant)


$ 


Cost per Program Participant: $ ______________


I understand that this document in its entirety is incorporated into my grant Agreement 
with the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government. 


Authorized Representative (typed name): __________________________________________________________ 


Title: ________________________________________________________________  Date: ________________ 
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5.2 Capacity & Sustainability 


5.2.1  Staff Qualifications & Experience  5 Points 
Provide information on the key/primary individuals that will be involved in the provision of services and demonstrate that 
they have the capacity to address the stated need. List each position by title and name of employee, if available. Describe 
the anticipated roles and responsibilities for each person as it relates to this project. Describe the experience, expertise, 
and capacity of each individual to address the proposed activities. 


5.2.2  Partnership & Resource Leverage        5 Points  
How do your programs and services support our community’s comprehensive response to the identified priority area of 
Community Wellness & Safety? Does your organization have any formal agreements or informal working relationship with 
other local service programs?  


What role does your governing board members, volunteers, and / or donors play in facilitating viable service delivery and 
program administration? Does your program have any major civic benefactors or corporate sponsors? Describe other 
secured funding sources and committed operational resources your organization has allocated for the proposed program. 
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5.2.3 Outreach & Inclusion Strategy  15 Points  
Demonstrate how the program will ensure services are available and accessible by all potential participants, especially 
related to language barriers for persons with limited English proficiency; persons with physical or other disabilities; and 
persons impacted by poverty and economic distress.  


Has your organization enacted any policies (or employs any standard operating procedures) to ensure equitable service 
opportunity and / or benefit program to a diverse cross-section of the greater community?  


Required attachments with Proposal Submittal Form (8 total): 


5.1.1  General Shelter Information 


• Does your emergency shelter consistently implement practices to meet people where they are, and provide person-
centered care that focuses on personal strengths? (submit documentation as an attachment)


• What policies or value statements convey clear expectations that guests will be treated with dignity and respect, and 
how does the shelter monitor adherence to these expectations? (submit documentation as an attachment)


• Does the shelter involve guests in governance and operations? (submit documentation as an attachment)
• Submit reports from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 as attachments:


o CoC APR
o CoC CAPER


5.1.3  Low Barrier 
• Does the shelter set only minimal and reasonable requirements for guests, and does the shelter enforce these


requirements in a fair and transparent way? (submit documentation as an attachment)
• Does your emergency shelter have minimal expectations or requirements of people seeking shelter? (submit


documentation as an attachment)
• Are guests required or requested to contribute funds or labor to remain in the shelter? (submit documentation of


any program fees or volunteer time required as an attachment)







BLUEGRASS BLUEGRASS 


care � transitional :.-
navigators care� 


Expert. Connected. Care. Expert. Connected. Care. 


Applicant: Bluegrass Care Navigators, d/b/a Bluegrass Transitional Care 


Lead Applicant: Elizabeth D. Fowler, President and CEO 


Susan Swinford, VP of Administration, Project Lead 


Contact: 2312 Alexandria Drive, Lexington, KY 40504 


(859) 276-5344 susans@bgcarenav.org 


Project: Bluegrass Transitional Care for Medical Respite 


Bluegrass Transitional Care (BTC) proposes to provide medical respite care for the Lexington 


homeless population transitioning them from the hospital when they are too ill, injured, or frail 


to recover in a shelter or on the street. BTC is a case management entity, developed in 2012 to 


offer evidenced-based models of nurse transitions for patients at hospital discharge who are at 


risk of readmitting to the hospital within 3 0 days of discharge. BTC proposes to continue 


utilizing the nationally recognized hotel/motel respite care model, which has successfully been 


utilized with University of Kentucky HealthCare homeless patients since 2017. Patients that are 


enrolled in the medical respite transition intervention are identified by hospital case managers 


and medical staff. The BTC intervention begins during the hospitalization with the 


hospital-based coach working closely with the medical staff and case managers to prepare for 


discharge and transition to the hotel/motel for medical respite. The BTC home nurse coach 


transitions the patient into the hotel on the day of discharge and follows throughout the 


intervention and medical respite stay. 


llPage 


BLUEGRASS 


care 
navigators 


Expert. Connected. Care. 


BLUEGRASS 


transitional�� 
care._ 


Expert. Connected. Care. 















improve health care outcomes through evidenced-based nurse transition interventions and 


dependable respite housing. Additionally, reducing health care costs. 


Bluegrass Transitional Care 


Bluegrass Transitional Care (BTC), originally KY Appalachian Transition Services, is a case 


management program developed in 2011 that contracts with payers and entities to transition at


risk frail patients to prevent avoidable hospital readmissions and emergency department 


utilization after discharging home or to a nursing facility. In February 2013, BTC was one of 100 


community-based organizations that was awarded the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid, 


Center for Innovations' Community Based Care Transitions Demonstration Project. The goal of 


the demonstration was to test evidenced-based model of care transitions for persons at-risk of 30-


day readmission. Each awardee had to partner with the highest readmission hospitals in the state, 


BTC worked with four Appalachian Regional Health Care acute hospitals in Eastern KY. The 5-


year demonstration ended in March 2017 and BTC was one of sixteen high performers to finish 


the demonstration. 


Transitions of care are a range of time limited services that are designed to ensure that patients 


and caregivers can understand and utilize health care information, ensure health care continuity 


and avoid preventable poor outcomes as they move from one level of care to another, among 


multiple providers across settings. Medication reconciliation, medication education, ensuring 


physician follow-up, assessment, resource referral, coaching regarding their medical conditions 


are all components of the transition intervention. BTC uses two transition models, the Dr. Mary 


Naylor Transitional Care Model (ICM), through the University of Pennsylvania's Ralston 


41Page 











Symptom Bother Scale: positively associated with difficulty with activities of daily living and 


depression, and negatively associated with subjective health 


Rapid Estimate of Adult Literacy in Medicine SF: tests the degree to which individuals have 


the capacity to obtain, process, and understand basic health information and services needed to 


make appropriate health decisions 


Generalized Anxiety Scale-7: screening tool to measure the severity of generalized anxiety 


disorder 


Proposed Medical Respite Program 


BTC utilizes motel/hotel rooms for homeless respite care, a model that has also been 


successfully implemented in many cities in the nation. This model is relatively low cost, easy to 


implement, requires no licensure or other regulatory conditions, would allow families to stay 


together and is effective in protecting the patient from infections from other patients. 


Based on the number of patients we are currently serving through Bluegrass Transitional 


Care Medical Respite, we project that this program will provide care for a total of 96 patients 


experiencing homelessness in each of fiscal years 2021 and 2022. These patients will be 


served in partnership with University of Kentucky HealthCare, Baptist Health Lexington, and 


Saint Joseph Hospital. BTC has utilized the Bluegrass Extended Stay Hotel, Richmond Rd, for 


homeless medical respite. Each room has a kitchenette with a full-size refrigerator, microwave 


and coffeemakers. There is an attendant at the front desk 24-hours a day, laundry facilities, 


handicapped accessible rooms, free coffee/tea and a light breakfast. UK HealthCare homeless 


patients that BTC has placed in the hotel for medical respite have been pleased with the 


accommodations. The hotel is secure through the 24-hour front desk, individual room locks and 
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For patients that will be discharged from Baptist Health Lexington and Saint Joseph Hospital, the 


BTC staff will work closely with case management, medical staff and social workers to identify 


eligible patients. The UK hospital coaches will go to the hospitals and enroll the patients in the 


program and begin the discharge planning process with the designated office staff coordinating 


the hotel stay and discharge. 


Eligibility: Patients must be ambulatory and able to care for themselves (with assistance), 


including taking their medications appropriately with guidance. Patients should not be actively 


using alcohol or illegal substances, although a social worker is available for counseling and 


referral to community resources. Families are eligible to stay in the hotel with the patient during 


the medical respite for recuperation. Friends may be eligible to stay with the patient on a case


by-case basis. With the motel medical respite model there is not a limit on the number of patients 


that can access the service at the same time. 


BTC utilizes the Naylor TCM Risk Assessment Tool to determine the patient's risk factors for 


readmitting to the hospital within 30-days of discharge. Risk factors include: Age 80 or older, 


moderate to severe functional deficits, history of mental/emotional illness, 4 or more co-existing 


health conditions, 6 or more prescribed medications, 2 or more hospitalizations within past 6 


months, hospitalization in past 30 days, inadequate support system, "poor" self-rating of health, 


and documented history of non-adherence to therapeutic regimen. The hospital-based coach 


conducts the risk assessment prior to discharge and documents the score in the medical record 


and BTC electronic medical record. The risk factors are pai1 of the comprehensive assessment 


and assist in the development of a plan for service. 
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Medical Respite & BTC Intervention Discharge 


During the entire medical respite and transitional care intervention, the nurse/coach and social 


worker will be working with the patient on a plan for discharge. Working in collaboration with 


community agencies to prepare the patient to return to the community is vital to the success of 


the intervention. Agencies that BTC will coordinate care and services with are, but not limited to, 


Wheels, homeless shelters, LFUCG Office of Homelessness Prevention and Intervention, 


Moveable Feast, Lexington Rescue Mission, AIDS Volunteers, Adult and Tenant Services 


LFUCG, Catholic Action Center, LFUCG Housing Authority, KY Prescription Assistance 


Program, and home health agencies. BTC is fully integrated into the UK HealthCare system and 


its physician practices and works closely in transitions with all physician practices and provider 


groups in Lexington. Through its many lines of service, BCN has close collaborations with 


Baptist Health Lexington and Saint Joseph Hospital. 


The BTC intervention will continue after the patient leaves the medical respite hotel and 


transition the patient to a shelter or permanent housing, for a maximum of six (6) weeks post 


hospital discharge. This will provide an opportunity to ensure the patient attend follow-up 


appointments and treatments. At six (6) weeks, arrangements will be in place for follow-up 


medical care and treatments. The patient will receive a written discharge instructions that 


reinforces goals attained, strategies developed, and emergency plan to manage their illness. BTC 


nurse/coaches use teaching sheets that include specific diagnosis "Red Flags" that help the 


patient manage their conditions and recognize warning signs and plans to address symptoms. The 


primary care provider physician also receives a Discharge Summary of services provided. 
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Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease, tobacco abuse and oxygen dependent. The patient 


needed a new special portable oxygen concentrator that UK HealthCare agreed to purchase, 


which would take 4-5 days to arrive. Rather than remain in the hospital, BTC transitioned the 


patient to a hotel and had a temporary oxygen concentrator delivered. The patient remained in 


the hotel for 5 days and transitioned back to the homeless shelter. The nurse/coach transitioned 


the patient to the shelter and completed the intervention. The patient didn't have a hospital 


readmission. 


Patient 3: 55-year-old male hospitalized for Bacterial Pneumonia, 18-day length of stay. The 


patient has multiple co-morbidities, including HIV, Cellulitis and Hep C. The patient was 


awaiting a placement at Solomon House and rather than stay in the hospital BTC transitioned 


him to a hotel. He was at the hotel for 5 days and then transitioned to Solomon House. He was 


seen by the nurse/coach 3 times and by the social worker 2 times over the 6-week transition. 


Provided the patient with clothing to wear to his mother's funeral, food and obtained Wheels. 


The patient didn't have a hospital readmission and had one emergency department visit for an 


ear ache. 


BTC has existing partnerships with hospitals, physician practices, social services agencies, such 


as Moveable Feast that will be leveraged to ensure the medical respite program is successful and 


part of a continuum of care in the community. 


Team Members Working in Medical Respite: 


Susan Swinford, MSW, VP of Administration: Project Lead, CV attached 


Kelly Adkins, Associate of Business Management, Administration Office, Hotel Medical 


Respite Coordinator, Position Description: is responsible for coordinating with the hospital-
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based coach and hospital case manager to arrange for the hotel, stock food, Moveable Feast, 


applicable durable medical equipment and coordinate the hotel stay, and assigning the home 


nurse/coach and social worker. 


Hospital-based Nurse/Coach: Position Description: works closely with UK HealthCare to 


identify eligible homeless medical respite patients, enrolls the patients into transitions, in 


collaboration with UK case management, medical staff and social workers plans for patient 


discharge to the hotel. Section 5 .1 has detailed descriptions of the roles and responsibilities for 


the hospital-based nurse/coach. There are 3 hospital-based coaches at UK that will also enroll 


patients at Baptist Health Lexington and Saint Joseph Hospital. 


Home Nurse/Coach: Position Description: sees the patient at the hotel within 24-hours of 


hospital discharge and begins the medical respite intervention in the hotel. The nurse/coach sees 


the patient once a week for 4 weeks, telephonic when needed and in the fifth week, in-person 


visit in week 6 to discharge the patient. There are 3 Lexington home nurse/coaches that will 


provide the intervention. Section 5.1 has detailed descriptions of the roles and responsibilities for 


the home nurse/coaches. 


Home Social Worker: Position Description: provides hotel visits as needed for community 


resource and program referrals, counseling and assessments. Section 5.1 has further detail on the 


roles and responsibilities. 


Trained Volunteers: BCT will use the BCN organization's trained volunteers that work in all 


lines of service to provide transportation as needed, deliver food and offer companionship. 
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���������	
���	���������	 ����������	����������		


	 �������	�������	��������	�������		


 ��!"	��#	�$#�%	 ���	$	��	$		&'			()*	+,-./01	233-0*,	,*4/-56	078-*6	73	4)*	7,-9-5/:	;74-0*	73	+,-./01	+,/04-0*6	/5<	/51	6=>6*?=*54	,*.-6-756	37,	/	8*,-7<	73	6*.*5	@AB	1*/,6	3,7C	4)*	</4*	73	-46	0,*/4-75	7,	D)*5	-4	D/6	:/64	-5	*33*04E	D)-0)*.*,	-6	:/4*,'		FG'		H70=C*54/4-75	-6	,*4/-5*<	37,	6*.*5	@AB	1*/,6	/34*,	4)*	8/4-IJKLMNOPQIJKLM	D,-44*5	/0R57D:*<9C*54	73	,*0*-84	73	STULM	;74-0*	73	+,-./01	+,/04-0*6	7,	73	*337,46	C/<*	47	7>4/-5	4)-6	D,-44*5	/0R57D:*<9C*54	/5<	4)*	,*/675@6B	D)1	-4	D/6	574	7>4/-5*<'		FF'		V::	*C8:71**6	/5<	>=6-5*66	/6670-/4*6	73	WX;	/,*	,*?=-,*<	47	/<)*,*	47	4)*	8,-./01	8,/04-0*6	/6	<*4/-:*<	-5	4)*	;74-0*	73	+,-./01	+,/04-0*6E	8,-./01	87:-0-*6	/5<	8,70*<=,*6	/5<	>=6-5*66	/6670-/4*	0754,/046'		FY'		Z-7:/4-756	73	STULM	8,-./01	8,/04-0*6	D-::	,*6=:4	-5	<-60-8:-5/,1	/04-75E	=8	47	/5<	-50:=<-59E	4*,C-5/4-75	73	*C8:71C*54	7,	0754,/046'	







���������	
���	���������	 ����������		


��������	� !�"!�#	 ����$��	�%!&'!�#		(��)*�+,��-.	/012	
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		5.1 Program Design & Performance

		Proposal Submittal shall be considered incomplete and shall be rejected without completed Budget Summary Form. (Including total amount of ESR grant request.)

		5.2 Capacity & Sustainability



		Mailing Address: 2312 Alexandria Drive, Lexington KY 40504

		Street Address: 2312 Alexandria Drive, Lexington KY 40504

		Phone: 859

		Website Address: www.bgcarenav.org

		Agency Representative typically the Executive Director Name Title Phone Email: Liz Fowler, President/CEO, 859-276-5344, lfowler@bgcarenav.org

		Name of program for which funds are being requested: Bluegrass Transitional Care for Medical Respite

		TotalNumber of individual beds available: N/A

		TotalNumber of units available for families if applicable: N/A

		TotalFunds requested from LFUCG: 80000

		TotalAverage nightly census for individuals based on KYHMIS data: N/A

		TotalAverage nightly census for families based on KYHMIS data: N/A

		TotalTotal annual budget for shelter all funding sources: 140871

		Total LFUCG investment LFUCG RequestTotal Budget  100: 56.8

		and capacity of each individual to address the proposed activities: Team members working in Bluegrass Transitional Care Medical Respite include: Susan Swinford, MSW, VP of Administration: Project Lead, CV attachedJamie Cody, RN, Transitions Program Supervisor, Resume attachedHospital-based Nurse/Coach: works closely with UK HealthCare to identify eligible homeless medical respite patients, enrolls the patients into transitions, in collaboration with UK case management, medical staff and social workers plans for patient discharge to the hotel. There are 3 hospital-based coaches at UK that will also enroll patients at Baptist Health Lexington and Saint Joseph Hospital. Home Nurse/Coach: sees the patient at the hotel within 24-hours of hospital discharge and begins the medical respite intervention in the hotel. The nurse/coach sees the patient once a week for 4 weeks, telephonic when needed and in the fifth week, in-person visit in week 6 to discharge the patient. There are 3 Lexington home nurse/coaches that will provide the intervention.Home Social Worker: Position Description: provides hotel visits as needed for community resource and program referrals, counseling and assessments. Trained Volunteers: BCT will use the BCN organization's trained volunteers that work in all lines of service to provide transportation as needed, deliver food and offer companionship.Please see attached document with curriculum vitae/resumes.

		secured funding sources and committed operational resources your organization has allocated for the proposed program: The Bluegrass Transitional Care Medical Respite program has existing partnerships with University of Kentucky HealthCare, Baptist Health Lexington, Saint Joseph Hospital, physician practices, housing providers, and social services agencies that are leveraged regularly to ensure the medical respite program is successful and part of a continuum of care in the community. Working in collaboration with a wide range of community agencies to prepare the patient to return to the community is vital to the success of this intervention. Bluegrass Transitional Care participates in the Lexington Continuum of Care. Some of the agencies with which we coordinate care and services include, but are not limited to, Lexington Housing Authority, Community Action Council, AIDS Volunteers of Lexington, local landlords and apartment associations, LFUCG Adult and Tenant Services, Wheels, LFUCG Office of Homelessness Prevention and Intervention, Moveable Feast, Lexington Rescue Mission, Catholic Action Center, KY Prescription Assistance Program, Kentucky Department for Community Based Services, and home health agencies.The Bluegrass Care Navigators Board of Directors oversees quality improvement, fiscal management, and fund-raising efforts. Our organization engages hundreds of volunteers whom we train to support our patient care programs in various capacities. We rely upon philanthropic support from the community to cover the gap not funded through traditional medical payers so that we can provide compassionate care to every eligible patient, regardless of ability to pay or level of insurance coverage.Please see attached program description for complete details.

		opportunity and  or benefit program to a diverse crosssection of the greater community: Participants in the Bluegrass Transitional Care Medical Respite program come from a situation of homelessness. As such, this program targets some of the most marginalized members of our society. These individuals are impacted by poverty and economic distress. In order to qualify for medical respite services, they must have been immediately discharged from the hospital for a physical or other disability. Program participants may also present with limited English proficiency. One overarching goal is to help every qualifying patient in need by providing the highest quality physical and psychosocial support, without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, handicap or national origin. To this end, Bluegrass Care Navigators has instituted a “Non-Discrimination in Patient Care” policy to ensure that every service and benefit we provide remains inclusive to all patients. Further, our policies provide that the organization will not exclude or deny a qualified individual with a disability from participating in or benefitting from our services, programs, or activities. BCN works creatively with limited English proficient patients and their families to address any language barriers they may experience. BCN contracts with Language Line Solutions to respond to the need for translation services. BCN honors patient translation preferences and, within certain safeguards, will collaborate with a patient’s preferred family member with better English proficiency or preferred community-based (volunteer or paid) translators.Please see Non-Discrimination in Patient Care and other policy statements attached.

		501y: Yes

		501n: Off

		ggy: Yes

		ggn: Off

		prefix: 276

		phonedigits: 5344

		completing app: Davey King, Grants Manager, 859-296-6867

		amount requested: 80000

		Gen Shelter Info: Bluegrass Transitional Care (BTC) is a case management program developed in 2011 that contracts with payers and entities to transition atrisk frail patients to prevent avoidable hospital readmissions and emergency department utilization after discharging home or to a nursing facility. Our program is built around compassionate care, ensuring that every patient is treated with dignity and respect.Some patients in our community do not have a home to return to when they are discharged from a hospital. BTC provides medical respite for patients who are homeless by utilizing motel/hotel rooms in the community, a model that we have used for several years in Lexington and has also been successfully implemented in many cities in the nation. This model is relatively low cost, easy to implement, requires no licensure or other regulatory conditions, allows families to stay together and is effective in protecting the patient from infections from other patients. It also helps divert patients under treatment for serious medical conditions from shelters that may not have the necessary training, expertise, and resources to provide the full complement of services needed. Based on the number of patients we are currently serving through Bluegrass Transitional Care Medical Respite, we project that this program will provide care for a total of 96 patients experiencing homelessness in each of the next two fiscal years. These patients will be served in partnership with University of Kentucky HealthCare, Baptist Health Lexington, and Saint Joseph Hospital. Please see attached program description for complete details.

		Rapid Reso: Bluegrass Care Navigators is a community healthcare provider that focuses on helping patients achieve the highest quality of health possible. We understand that housing is an extremely important social determinant of health. As noted above, Bluegrass Transitional Care (BTC) is a case management program. As such, we seek to address all barriers impacting a patient’s self-sufficiency and to connect the patient with appropriate resources in the community to help them obtain and sustain long-term housing that is affordable and appropriate for their circumstance. This program diverts homeless patients from traditional shelter facilities. During the entire medical respite and transitional care intervention, the nurse/coach and social worker collaborate with the patient on a plan for discharge. Working in collaboration with community agencies to prepare the patient to return to the community is vital to the success of the intervention. Bluegrass Transitional Care participates in the Lexington Continuum of Care. Agencies that we coordinate care and services with include, but are not limited to, Lexington Housing Authority, Community Action Council, AIDS Volunteers of Lexington, local landlords and apartment associations, LFUCG Adult and Tenant Services, Wheels, LFUCG Office of Homelessness Prevention and Intervention, Moveable Feast, Lexington Rescue Mission, Catholic Action Center, KY Prescription Assistance Program, Kentucky Department for Community Based Services, and home health agencies.Please see attached program description for complete details.

		Low Barrier: Under the Bluegrass Transitional Care innovative medical respite model, our transitional care model (TCM) and care transitions intervention (CTI) follow a client- and person-centered approach that has now been regionally and nationally recognized as extremely successful. All referrals are screened by Bluegrass Care Navigator nurses and are enrolled only for medical respite needs. Patients must be ambulatory and able to care for themselves (with assistance), including taking their medications appropriately with guidance. For patients struggling with alcohol or illegal substance use, a social worker is available for counseling and referral to community resources. Families are eligible to stay in the hotel with the patient during the medical respite for recuperation. Our medical respite initiative incorporates family caregivers into the program, as appropriate.The primary focus of the Bluegrass Transitional Care medical respite program is on helping the patient receive adequate healthcare services to achieve treatment success, rather than imposing extraneous expectations and requirements on convalescing patients. We follow the patient-focused policies of Bluegrass Care Navigators and are a part of this organization’s Compliance Plan. Please see attached program description for complete details.

		Actual Results: N/A – The Bluegrass Transitional Care medical respite program is not a first-time applicant.

		Agency Name: Hospice of the Bluegrass, Inc. dba Bluegrass Care Navigators

		Program Name: Bluegrass Transitional Care for Medical Respite

		FTE: 2

		PTE: 

		FT A: 96231

		FT B: 35360

		FT C: 60871

		PT A: 0

		PT B: 

		PT C: 

		Total Salaries A: 96231

		Total Salaries B: 35360

		Total Salaries C: 60871

		Consult A: 0

		Consult B: 0

		Consult C: 0

		Consulting details: N/A

		Space A: 36000

		Space B: 36000

		Space C: 0

		Space details: 8 clients/month at an average of 5 nights/cost of $75/night =$3,000*12months = $36,000

		Operating A: 8640

		Operating B: 8640

		Operating C: 0

		Operating Details: Transportation costs = $50/client * 8 clients/month = $400*12 months = $4,800Food costs = $40/client * 8 clients/month = $320* 12 months = $3,840

		Scholarships A: 0

		Scholarships B: 0

		Scholarships C: 0

		Scholarship details: N/A

		Other A: 0

		Other B: 0

		Other C: 0

		Other details: N/A

		Total Budget A: 140871

		Total Budget B: 80000

		Total Budget C: 60871

		Cost Per Participant: 1467

		Authorized Representative typed name: Laura Klumb

		Title: Vice President of Philanthropy

		Date: 04-02-2020








LFUCG ESR Grant Program Respondent Clarification Question Responses 
 
Bid Number: RFP-6-2020 
Bid Title: Extended Social Resources (ESR) Grant Program – Emergency Overnight Shelter 
Respondent: Hospice of the Bluegrass, Inc. dba Bluegrass Care Navigators 
Program Name: Bluegrass Transitional Care for Medical Respite 
 
 


1. Is your proposal still viable for implementation as originally submitted?  
 
Response: 
Yes. Implementation of this program is still viable. 
 
 


2. Please detail any modifications you will be making to the original submission in order to comply 
with the new service delivery requirements in the COVID-19 environment? (i.e. social distancing, 
capacity requirements, group event restrictions, etc.)  
 
Response: 
We will not be making any modifications to original submission, as the medical respite model 
complies with COVID-19 service delivery requirements. 
 
 


3. Will these new modifications increase or decrease your proposed budget? Please detail any 
increases or decreases to your proposed budget including additional costs and/or other secured 
funding.  
 
Response: 
No changes to proposed budget. 
 


 








PURCHASE OF SERVICE AGREEMENT  
 


 THIS PURCHASE OF SERVICE AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Agreement”), made and 


entered into on the ____ day of September, 2020, by and between the LEXINGTON-


FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT, an urban county government of the 


Commonwealth of Kentucky created pursuant to KRS chapter 67A (hereinafter 


“Government”), 200 East Main Street, Lexington, Kentucky 40507, on behalf of its Depart-


ment of Social Services (hereinafter “Sponsor”), and, HOSPICE OF THE BLUEGRASS, INC., 


dba BLUEGRASS CARE NAVIAGATORS with offices located at 1733 Harrodsburg Road, 


Lexington, Kentucky 40504, (hereinafter “Organization”). 


W I T N E S S E T H 


 That for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein expressed, 


the Government and the Organization agree as follows:  


 1. Government hereby retains Organization for the period beginning on July 1, 


2020, and continuing for a period of one (1) year from that date unless within that period 


Government gives the Organization thirty (30) days written notice of termination of this 


Agreement in which case this Agreement shall terminate thirty (30) days from the date notice 


is given to the Organization. 


 2. Government shall pay Organization the sum of Fifty-Five Thousand and 


00/100 Dollars ($55,000) for the services required by this Agreement, said services being 


more particularly described in the Addendum attached hereto and incorporated herein by 


reference as Exhibit A, one-half (1/2th) of which shall be payable in October 2020 or shortly 


thereafter upon receipt of an invoice, with one-fourth (1/4th) payable in January 2021 or shortly 


thereafter upon receipt of an invoice, and with one-fourth (1/4th) payable in April 2021 or 


shortly thereafter upon receipt of an invoice and  detailed program reports in January 2021, 


April 2021, and July 2021.  The first invoice required by this section shall be submitted 
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by October 9th, 2020. The second invoice and the first six month detailed program 


report shall be due January 18th, 2021. The final invoice and the detailed program report 


for the third quarter shall be due April 19th, 2021.  A year-end program report shall be 


submitted by July 16th, 2021. Failure to submit the year-end program report, which 


includes the final quarter, shall result in the Organization repaying one-fourth (1/4th) of 


total funds provided under this Agreement. Reports shall reflect the services and 


programs directly related to the funding provided by Lexington Fayette Urban County 


Government with emphasis on measurable outcomes, and specifically outlined in the funding 


application.  Forms for both the quarterly financial and program reports will be provided. 


 3. In the event of termination of this Agreement by Government as provided for in 


paragraph 1 above, Organization shall be entitled to that portion of total compensation due 


under this Agreement as the service rendered bears to the service required herein.  


 4. Organization shall perform all duties and services included in the Addendum 


attached hereto faithfully and satisfactorily at the time, place and for the duration prescribed 


herein.  Compensation paid pursuant to this Agreement shall be used exclusively for the 


services set forth in the Addendum and for no other purpose.  Any alteration in the nature of 


such services and duties constitutes an amendment to this Agreement and must be in writing 


signed by both parties.  Organization shall keep itself fully informed of all federal and state 


laws and all municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting the work or 


performance of this Agreement, and shall at all times observe and comply with such laws, 


ordinances and regulations, whether or not such laws, ordinances or regulations are men-


tioned herein, and  


5. Organization shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Government, its 


officers, agents and employees, from and against any and all liabilities, claims, demands, 


losses, damages, costs, and/or expenses arising out of, from, relating to, and/or based on 
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the Organization’s violation of any such laws, ordinances or regulations or Organization’s 


breach of this Agreement. 


 6. Organization represents that it has filed all federal, state and local income tax 


returns required by law in the legally prescribed time and manner.  This Agreement shall not 


become effective unless and until copies of all of the executed originals of the aforementioned 


tax returns filed for the Organization have been registered for the current tax year by the 


Organization in the office of the Sponsor, and the Organization shall not be compensated 


unless and until such registration has taken place.  


 7. The Organization shall, on such forms as the Sponsor shall provide, submit to 


Sponsor an annual report and financial statement which summarize the previous year’s 


activities regarding the services enumerated in the addendum attached hereto.  


 8. Books of accounts shall be kept by the Organization and entries shall be made 


therein of all money, goods, effects, debts, sales, purchases, receipts, payments and any 


other transactions of the Organization.  The books of accounts, together with all bonds, notes, 


bills, letters and other writings belonging to the Organization, shall be maintained at the 


principal place of business of the Organization as set forth in this Agreement.  Government 


shall have free and complete access to the books, papers and affairs of the Organization, 


that relate to the performance of this Agreement, at all reasonable times, and if it desires, it 


may have the books and papers of the Organization, that relate to the performance of this 


Agreement, audited and examined by auditors, accountants or attorneys.  Any examination 


shall be at the expense of the Government.  


 9. Government may designate such persons as may be necessary to monitor and 


evaluate the services rendered by the Organization.  The Government, its agents and 


employees, shall, at all times, have unrestricted access to all places where or in which the 


services required hereunder are being carried on and conducted.  Inspection and monitoring 
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of the work by these authorities shall in no manner be presumed to relieve in any degree the 


responsibility or obligations of Organization, nor to constitute the Organization as an agent of 


the Government.  


10. Organization shall provide equal opportunity in employment for all qualified 


persons, shall prohibit discrimination in employment because of race, color, creed, national 


origin, sex or age, and shall cause each of its subcontracting agencies to do so.  This program 


of equal employment opportunity shall apply to every aspect of its employment policies and 


practices.  


11. Organization shall adopt a written sexual harassment policy, which shall, at a 


minimum, contain a statement of current law; a list of prohibited behaviors; a complaint 


process; and a procedure which provides for a confidential investigation of all complaints.  


The policy shall be given to all employees and clients and shall be posted at all locations 


where Organization conducts business.  The policy shall be submitted to Sponsor for review 


within thirty (30) days of the execution of this Agreement. 


 12. This instrument, and the Addendum incorporated herein, contains the entire 


agreement between the parties, and no statement, promises or inducements made by either 


party or agent of either party that is not contained in this written Agreement shall be valid and 


binding; and this Agreement may not be enlarged, modified or altered except in writing signed 


by the parties and endorsed hereon.  


 13. Organization agrees that it shall apply all funds received by it from the Urban 


County Government in accordance with the following investment policy guidelines:  


A. Objectives:  Capital preservation with surety of income.  Reasonable 
competitive income consistent with high investment quality and purpose 
of funds.  All investments shall conform with state and local law and 
regulations and these policies. 


 
B. Investment Funds Management:  The governing board may elect to 


either:  







 
5 of 6 


 
(1) Manage its investment through its executive director where the 
size or complexity of funds to be managed is deemed by the board to 
be within the training, expertise and/or available time capacity of the 
executive director and the operating staff; or  


 
(2) Utilize the professional investment management facilities of a 
local bank trust department acting in a fiduciary capacity within the 
same approved investment policies and federal, state, local and trust 
laws and regulation.  The trust department may utilize its regular short-
term one hundred percent (100%) US Treasury Fund for daily funds 
investment.  


 
The election of option 1 or 2 should be made consistent with the relative 
cost incurred and in the case of option 2 the cost shall be competitive 
among local trust departments. 


 
  C. Investment Policies - - Safety and Prudence.  
 


(1) Short-term liquidity funds shall be invested in “riskless” 
investment, i.e., deposits in Kentucky commercial banks or savings and 
loan associations that are fully federally insured or deposits 
collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities with a current market value of 
at least one hundred percent (100%), or in direct obligations of U.S. 
Treasury securities. 


 
Investments shall be diversified according to maturity in order to meet 
projected cash flow needs.  


 
Collateral pledged to secure uninsured deposits shall be held at a 
federal reserve bank with the receipt providing absolute control by the 
agency.  


 
(2) Retirement funds, endowment funds, long-term capital reserve 
funds and any other special funds may be held and invested by a local 
bank trust department under investment objectives and diversification 
in accordance with the individual nature of the funds and pursuant to 
the “prudent man” investment rule as well as general trust law.  


 
(3) All investments shall be reviewed monthly by a finance or 
investment committee of the agency.  


 
(4)  Local brokerage firms may hold and invest funds provided that 
investments are located within Kentucky and are full insured.  


 
D. Audit - - All investments shall be audited at least annually by independent 


certified public accountant who shall express an opinion as to whether or 
not investments during the year audited have conformed with state and 
local law and regulation and with the approved investment policies.  
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14. Notice – Any written notice required by the Agreement shall be delivered by 


certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following: 


 


 


 


 


For Organization:  


_________________________ 


_________________________  


    _________________________ 


 
    Attn:  _____________________ 
 
 
For Government:  Lexington-Fayette Urban County Gov. 
    200 East Main Street 
    Lexington, Kentucky 40507 
 
    Attn:  Chris Ford, Commissioner 
              Department of Social Services 


 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement at Lexington, 


Kentucky, the day and year first above written. 


LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN    HOSPICE OF THE BLUEGRASS, INC.  
COUNTY GOVERNMENT      DBA BLUEGRASS CARE NAVIGATORS 
   
 
 
BY:__________________________   BY:__________________________ 
      Linda Gorton, Mayor     


Title:_________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
______________________________  
Clerk of the Urban  
County Council 





		W I T N E S S E T H
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March 18, 2019 draft 


Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government 
Request for Proposals


Extended Social Resources (ESR) Grant Program 
Priority Area: Emergency Overnight Shelter 


Purpose 
Each fiscal year the Mayor and Urban County Council allocate funds for use by selected 501(c)(3) non-profit 
partner agencies through the Department of Social Services’ Extended Social Resource (ESR) Program. The 
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (hereinafter referred to as "LFUCG") has historically partnered 
with non-profit agencies for the purpose of providing priority social services to supplement and support the 
work of the Urban County Government. These agencies are diverse in their missions and work plans, and provide 
services to the most vulnerable populations in our community.  


Eligibility 


• Eligible Responders shall be a non-profit 501(c)3 organization with a physical presence in Lexington-Fayette
County


• Responders shall be registered and have a current, complete Silver Seal of Transparency or higher level
agency portrait on GuideStar.org.


• ESR funds cannot be used to teach, advance,  advocate or promote any religion
• Be located in and/or serve Fayette County residents with ESR funds in Fayette County
• Applying organization agrees to comply with all applicable local, state, and federal laws
Applicants for overnight emergency shelter funding must meet or agree to implement the following items.
Submission of a proposal constitutes agreement to these terms:
• All shelter guests must be entered into the Kentucky Homeless Management Information System (KYHMIS)


database. All emergency shelter program specific data elements per the LFUCG Homelessness Prevention and
Intervention Board must be entered for each guest and they must be entered and exited from the shelter
project in KYHMIS within three (3) days of occurrence.1


• Shelters must participate fully in the OneDoor Lexington Coordinated Entry System. For shelters this means
conducting the VI-SPDAT assessment for guests who have reached an appropriate length of stay2, entering
those guests into the Coordinated Entry project in KYHMIS, and meeting all responsibilities outlined in
Lexington Coordinated Entry Policies & Procedures adopted by the LFUCG Homelessness Prevention &
Intervention Board.


• Shelters must ensure that they do not contribute to unlawful gaps in access based on race, ethnicity, gender
identity, sexuality, or other demographics, as defined by federal, state, and local laws and ordinances. Shelters
will have a culture that exhibits cultural competency and responsiveness.


Instructions 
Please follow the attached instructions and submit all required forms no later than the deadline indicated below: 


Proposal Deadline – 2:00  EST Friday, April 3rd, 2020. 
Proposals received after this deadline or incomplete proposals will not be considered. 


1 Exception is made for shelters serving survivors of intimate partner abuse which must instead utilize a separate but equivalent system 
as directed by HUD. 
2 Typically 2-3 weeks to see if homelessness can self-resolve but some discretion is allowed. Guests may refuse the assessment and/or 
refuse to have their information entered into HMIS. 



https://www.guidestar.org/
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1.0 GENERAL INFORMATION & SCOPE 


1.1 Background 
Each fiscal year the Mayor and Urban County Council allocate funds for use by selected 501(c)(3) non-
profit partner agencies through the Department of Social Services’ Extended Social Resource (ESR) 
Program.  


This grant cycle shall cover Fiscal Years 2021 and 2022 (July 1, 2020—June 30, 2022), and will award 
grants between the four Funding Priorities, which each have separate required Proposal Submittals and 
criteria, and awarded on an approximate scale, listed below. Proposers may submit ONE Proposal per 
Funding Priority Area. 


Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (LFUCG) wishes to complete a purchase for service 
agreement with non-profit organizations operating within the city of Lexington, to provide low-barrier, 
rapid resolution, housing-oriented overnight emergency shelter for individuals and families experiencing 
homelessness. 


Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (LFUCG) wishes to contract with non-profit organizations 
operating within the city of Lexington to provide low-barrier, housing-oriented overnight emergency 
shelter for individuals and families experiencing homelessness. These funding agreements will be 
administered by the Department of Social Services and monitored through the LFUCG Office of 
Homelessness Prevention & Intervention (OHPI).  


Emergency shelter contracts will be awarded to eligible applicants to assist in operating an emergency 
shelter in alignment with the goals of the Lexington-Fayette County Continuum of Care, the Office of 
Homelessness Prevention and Intervention and the LFUCG Homelessness Prevention & Intervention 
Board. This is a purchase service agreement with terms set by LFUCG. LFUCG intends to fund any 
organization which operates a rapid-resolution, housing oriented emergency shelter that assists 
individuals and families to exit into permanent housing quickly.   


Funding Priority Area: Emergency Overnight Shelter
Projected funding is 25% of total ESR Grant Program Award 


LFUCG seeks to fund programs and services to provide low-barrier, rapid resolution, housing-oriented 
overnight emergency shelter for individuals and families experiencing homelessness. 


2.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS


2.1 Purpose 
The LFUCG is accepting applications from qualified non-governmental, non-profit agencies with current 
501(c)3 tax exempt status and with a physical business or program site location in Fayette County 
(hereinafter, referred to as "Applicant") for ESR funding for FY2021 and FY2022 (July 1, 2020 – June 30, 
2021 and July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2022, with the 2nd year contingent on available funding approved by 
the Urban County Council). This funding is intended to support agency programs which respond to the 
funding priorities established herein. THIS FUNDING IS NOT INTENDED TO SUPPORT GENERAL AGENCY 
OPERATIONS, other than overhead required to support the subject program.  


2.2 Funding Period 
The funding period is from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022, with the 2nd year’s funding contingent 
on available funding approved by the Urban County Council. 
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2.3 ESR Grant Informational Workshop 
The Department of Social Services conducted a meeting on February 20, 2020 that provided potential 
proposers with an overview of the proposal and review process, instructions on completing the RFP, 
and presentation of funding priorities. 


2.4 Proposal Submission 
All Submissions must be uploaded to the LFUCG procurement website at 
https://lexingtonky.ionwave.net by FRIDAY, APRIL 3rd, 2020 before 2:00 PM EST. The Submission shall 
include an enclosed form that shall contain the required documents, and respond to one or more 
established funding priorities.  


Proposal submissions containing significant omissions of required information will be considered non-
responsive and removed from the RFP funding process on the application deadline date (April 3rd, 2020). 
Significant missing responses to questions constitute an incomplete application. The final decision 
regarding application completeness and penalties will be determined by the LFUCG Division of Central 
Purchasing in consultation with the Commissioner of Social Services. 


All proposals must be written in a clear and concise manner, as there will be no follow-up or 
clarifications to proposer’s Proposal Submittal Form once the evaluation process begins. 


Only include the attachments asked for in the RFP with the Proposal Submittal Form. Do not include 
additional documents or attachments with the Proposal Submittal Form, such as brochures or letters 
of support. These will be discarded.   


If your agency is submitting a proposal for the funding of more than one program in a single priority 
area, please note that they must be included in a single Proposal Submittal completed and submitted 
for that priority area RFP. Only one Proposal Submittal per agency per priority area RFP will be 
accepted. 


Submitted Proposal shall be comprised of the attached PDF formatted Proposal Submittal form. This 
form must be submitted in the original PDF form, and NOT be a scanned version of the original form. 


2.5   Acceptance/Rejection of Submissions 
The LFUCG reserves the right to reject any proposals which may be considered irregular, show serious 
omissions, contain unauthorized alteration of the Proposal Submittal form, or are incomplete. 


The LFUCG reserves the right to accept or reject any or all applications in whole or in part, with or 
without cause, to waive technicalities, to implement scoring penalties, or to accept applications or 
portions thereof which, in the Urban County Government’s judgment, best serve the interests of Urban 
County Government. 


2.6 Inquiries/Questions 
After thoroughly reading this Request for Proposals, Applicants must direct any questions to: 
Todd Slatin, Director 
Division of Central Purchasing 200 E. Main Street, Lexington, KY 40507 
E-mail: tslatin@lexingtonky.gov Phone: (859) 258-3320
Deadline for questions is Wednesday, March 18th, 2020 at 2:00 PM EST



https://lexingtonky.ionwave.net/

mailto:tslatin@lexingtonky.gov
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3.0 FUNDING PROCESS 


3.1 Timeline 
This Request for Proposals is being released on February 28th, 2020, and is made available to the public 
and all potentially eligible applicants. An informational and question and answer meeting will be held 
on Monday, March 9th, 2020, at 2 PM  EST at the Phoenix Building 3rd Floor Conference Room, 100 
East Vine Street, Lexington, KY 40507. This meeting will be open to the public and any potentially 
eligible applicants are invited to attend and ask questions or seek clarification regarding the RFP. 
Attendance is NOT required in order to submit a proposal and will not affect scoring during the 
evaluation process. 


Completed proposals must be submitted no later than 2 PM on FRIDAY, APRIL 3rd, 2020, and late or 
incomplete proposals will not be accepted or evaluated. 


The LFUCG intends to conduct proposal evaluation in April and May 2020 immediately following the 
proposal due date, with the intention to make funding announcements prior to July 1, 2020. This 
timeline is subject to change without notice. 


Successful applicants shall be contacted to negotiate a funding agreement with expectations that 
an award be in place for the funded programs to begin operations by July 1, 2020. No funds may 
be expended prior to the execution of a funding agreement and grantees will not be reimbursed for 
pre-award costs. 


3.1 Evaluation 
Proposals will be evaluated by a neutral panel including LFUCG staff and third-party reviewers who have 
expertise in the field of human services. The scoring criteria are outlined in Section 5.0 Criteria. 


3.2 Reporting 
The funded project will be required to submit regular progress reports demonstrating progress toward 
outcomes established in the proposal and associated funding agreement. Report formats will be 
determined by the Department of Social Services, as will due dates and submission process. Failure to 
submit complete reports on time will delay processing of grant payments and may affect the grantee’s 
competitiveness for any future funding opportunities with LFUCG. 


4.0       PROPOSAL FORMAT 


Proposal Submittal Forms must be uploaded to https://lexingtonky.ionwave.net before the 2:00 PM EST 
April 3rd, 2020 deadline. Late submissions will not be considered for funding. 


5.0 SCORING CRITERIA/EVALUATION 


Please see attached Proposal Submittal form to respond to the following; the Proposal Submittal form 
is the document that shall be completed with your responses and then uploaded as your RFP submittal. 
You will need to save the PDF formatted Proposal Submittal form to your hard drive before beginning 
to enter responses in it to ensure your responses are saved to the form. 



https://lexingtonky.ionwave.net/
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Funding Priority Area: Overnight Emergency Shelter 


 Projected funding is 25% of total ESR Grant Program Award  
 


LFUCG seeks to fund programs and services to provide low-barrier, rapid resolution, housing-oriented overnight 
emergency shelter for individuals and families experiencing homelessness. 


 


ESR Grant Program RFP Criteria      
    Points   


5.1 Program Design & Performance  
 5.1.1 General Shelter Information 15 
 5.1.2 Rapid Resolution, Housing Orientated 25 
 5.1.3 Low Barrier 15 
 5.1.4 Actual Results 10 
 5.1.5 Capacity, Cost Effectiveness, & Budget 10 
   Subtotal 75 


 
5.2 Capacity & Sustainability 
 5.2.1 Staff Qualifications & Experience 5 
 5.2.2 Partnership & Resource Leverage 5 
 5.2.3 Outreach & Inclusion Strategy 15 
   Subtotal 25 


 
   TOTAL 100 
 
 


5.1 Program Design, Performance, Budget      
 


5.1.1  General Shelter Information        15 points 
The following information is required in order to evaluate capacity and scope of programming and ensure a 
balance of shelter options for various sub-populations of people experiencing homelessness. While the overall 
narrative score is a major factor in funding recommendations, LFUCG will also consider factors such as ensuring 
availability of critical services and an adequate number of emergency shelter beds for vulnerable populations. 
 
• Provide a description of the shelter including; 


• shelter operating hours,  
• population served included special populations served,  
• shelter rules and procedures (submit documentation) 
• how basic needs are met such as meals and personal care, 
• operating hours outside of nighttime shelter, i.e. are staff operating during the day 
• general staffing description for the emergency shelter 


• Does your emergency shelter consistently implement practices to meet people where they are, and provide 
person-centered care that focuses on personal strengths? (submit documentation as an attachment) 


• What policies or value statements convey clear expectations that guests will be treated with dignity and 
respect, and how does the shelter monitor adherence to these expectations? (submit documentation as an 
attachment) 


• Are expectations of guests clearly communicated and easily accessible for review by guests? (submit 
documentation of communication process  


• What specific practices help ensure that the shelter exhibits cultural competency and provides appropriate 
protections for shelter seekers across demographic differences?  


• Does the shelter involve guests in governance and operations? (submit documentation as an attachment) 
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5.1.2  Rapid Resolution, Housing Oriented    25 points  
Up to 25 points will be awarded to applicants demonstrating a shelter project that is rapid resolution and housing 
oriented. This means a plan is presented for how the organization works with guests to develop and implement a 
housing plan including diversion techniques and how quickly people move to permanent housing.  
Narrative for this section should address all of the following prompts: 
 


• Does your emergency shelter’s process for accessing shelter assess options for diverting from shelter?  
• Does your emergency shelter’s diversion approach include, when needed, financial assistance, mediation, 


housing location, legal assistance, or other supports?  
• What role do mainstream programs play in supporting shelter seekers and diversion efforts? 
• How does your emergency shelter provide immediate assistance and link guests with housing options within 


the first 14 days of a shelter stay? 
• How does your emergency shelter use data routinely to detect trends, identify frequent users, and monitor 


housing success and other performance measures?  
• How your emergency shelter coordinate with the broader homelessness service and housing systems in 


system-level planning?  
• Does your emergency shelter assess and address the safety risks for people fleeing domestic violence? 
• Describe how shelter guests are assigned case management and detail how case management is provided in 


your emergency shelter. How often do case managers discuss housing options with guests? How and when 
do the conversations about obtaining housing begin? Do case managers utilize best practices when working 
with clients such as trauma informed care? 


• How will shelter staff members or volunteers help shelter guests access documents needed for housing (birth 
certificates, Social Security cards, etc.) when needed? 
 


5.1.3  Low-Barrier   15 points  
Up to 15 points will be awarded to applicants based on an evaluation of the shelter’s commitment to a housing 
first, low-barrier model. Low-barrier shelter is a critical piece in the homeless assistance approach that prioritizes 
providing people experiencing homelessness with shelter as quickly as possible – and then providing voluntary 
supportive services as needed. A low-barrier shelter is one which has only the least restrictive entry criteria 
necessary to ensure health and safety in the facility.  
Narrative for this section should address all of the following prompts: 
• Does the shelter set only minimal and reasonable requirements for guests, and does the shelter enforce these 


requirements in a fair and transparent way? (submit documentation as an attachment)  
• Does your emergency shelter have minimal expectations or requirements of people seeking shelter? (submit 


documentation as an attachment) 
• Does your shelter welcome self-defined family and kinship groups to seek shelter together?  
• Can your emergency shelter identify financial resources that can support the adoption of low-barrier policies 


and practices and support extended or flexible hours and adapted service-delivery models?  
• Does your shelter accommodate pets and belongings?  
• Does the shelter make accommodations to store belongings and if so, how?  
• Do your shelter intake process and housing navigation services coordinate closely with community-based 


outreach services and coordinated entry?  
• Does your shelter create flexible and predictable access for people seeking shelter?  
• Are guests required or requested to contribute funds or labor to remain in the shelter? (submit 


documentation of any program fees or volunteer time required as an attachment) 
• Are guests required to participate in classes or programs as a condition of remaining in the shelter? If yes, 


describe the process followed to determine whether someone is admitted or removed from the shelter and 
appeals available to those denied access. Applicants should include with their proposal a copy of written 
operation procedures for denial of services. This includes drug testing.  


• How many participants were turned away or banned in the past 12 months for reasons described above? 
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5.1.4  Actual Results   10 Points  
Applicants will be evaluated based on actual results from the previous year. LFUCG will utilize access to KYHMIS 
for organizations with prior year participation. ONLY non-participating first-time applicants should provide a 
narrative describing outcome targets and actual results for relevant existing shelter. If the organization has not 
operated an overnight emergency shelter in the past year, the organization may submit performance reports for 
any transitional housing, rapid rehousing, or permanent supportive housing program. . 
The OHPI reserves the right to negotiate final targets. Results will be evaluated based on reports from the KYHMIS 
database, not agency records, so KYHMIS data quality and timeliness is critical. 
 
• Submit reports from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 as attachments 


o CoC APR 
o CoC CAPER 


 
 
5.1.5  Capacity, Cost Effectiveness, & Budget   10 points  
Every community, including Lexington, faces the challenge of ensuring that shelter capacity is scaled to meet local 
need and that it is financed accordingly. This does assume that we should expand emergency shelter for those in 
the community that are currently experiencing unsheltered homelessness.  
 
In making decisions regarding necessary capacity, LFUCG will consider how a broad range of changes and 
improvements within their crisis response systems will impact need and demand for emergency shelter, including: 
increased emphasis on diversion strategies and services; reductions in the length of time it takes for guests to 
move from shelter to permanent housing, including through expanded rapid resolution interventions; removal of 
barriers to entry; and increased emphasis on long-term or frequent users of emergency shelter.  
 


Complete this table by indicating the total in the column to the right, then 
respond to the narrative prompts below: 


Total 


***Number of individual beds available:  


***Number of units available for families, if applicable:  


Funds requested from LFUCG:  


Average nightly census for individuals based on KYHMIS data:  


Average nightly census for families based on KYHMIS data:  


Total annual budget for shelter (all funding sources):  


% LFUCG investment (LFUCG Request/Total Budget * 100):  


 
• ***Total beds above not reflect any overflow capacity such as mats on the floor, sleeping in lobbies, dining 


room chairs or overflow into other buildings owned by partners such as churches or other non-profits. Also 
exclude beds reserved for/supported by Department of Corrections, Veterans Administration, Department of 
Community Based Services, or other funding sources.  


• Please describe all funding sources other than LFUCG that are included in your total emergency shelter budget. 
 


     Program Budget Summary Form   
 Proposal Submittal shall be considered incomplete and shall be rejected without completed Budget Summary 


Form. (Including total amount of ESR grant request.) 
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5.2 Capacity & Sustainability  
 
5.2.1 Staff Qualifications & Experience  5 Points 
Provide information on the key/primary individuals that will be involved in the provision of services and 
demonstrate that they have the capacity to address the stated need. List each position by title and name of 
employee, if available. Describe the anticipated roles and responsibilities for each person as it relates to this 
project. Describe the experience, expertise, and capacity of each individual to address the proposed activities. 
 
5.2.2 Partnership & Resource Leverage  5 Points 
How do your programs and services support our community’s comprehensive response to the identified priority 
area of Overnight Emergency Shelter? Does your organization have any formal agreements or informal working 
relationship with other local service programs?  
 
What role does your governing board members, volunteers, and / or donors play in facilitating viable service 
delivery and program administration? Does your program have any major civic benefactors or corporate 
sponsors? Describe other secured funding sources and committed operational resources your organization has 
allocated for the proposed program.  


 
 5.2.3 Outreach & Inclusion Strategy  15 Points  


Demonstrate how the program will ensure services are available and accessible by all potential participants, 
especially related to language barriers for persons with limited English proficiency; persons with physical or other 
disabilities; and persons impacted by poverty and economic distress.  
 
Has your organization enacted any policies (or employs any standard operating procedures) to ensure equitable 
service opportunity and / or benefit program to a diverse cross-section of the greater community?  
 
 
 
 
Required attachments with Proposal Submittal Form (8 total): 
 
5.1.1  General Shelter Information 
• Does your emergency shelter consistently implement practices to meet people where they are, and provide 


person-centered care that focuses on personal strengths? (submit documentation as an attachment) 
• What policies or value statements convey clear expectations that guests will be treated with dignity and 


respect, and how does the shelter monitor adherence to these expectations? (submit documentation as an 
attachment) 


• Does the shelter involve guests in governance and operations? (submit documentation as an attachment) 
• Submit reports from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 as attachments: 


o CoC APR  
o CoC CAPER  


 
 
5.1.3  Low Barrier 
• Does the shelter set only minimal and reasonable requirements for guests, and does the shelter enforce these 


requirements in a fair and transparent way? (submit documentation as an attachment)  
• Does your emergency shelter have minimal expectations or requirements of people seeking shelter? (submit 


documentation as an attachment) 
• Are guests required or requested to contribute funds or labor to remain in the shelter? (submit 


documentation of any program fees or volunteer time required as an attachment) 
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